
COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

HEALTH COMMISSION AGENDA 
Monday, March 9, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 
County Government Center 
Board of Supervisors Chambers 
1055 Monterey Street │ San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 

6:00 p.m. 1. Call to Order – Chair, Mary Jean Sage

6:05 p.m. 2. Public Comment:  persons desiring to speak on issues, other than scheduled items,
that are within the scope of interest to the Health Commission

6:10 p.m. 3. Consent Items:
3.1 Approve the meeting minutes from January 13, 2020
3.2 Approve Health Commission member appointment for submittal to the San Luis Obispo County Board

   of Supervisors 

6:15 p.m. 4. Information Item: Receive Update on Topics from Previous Meetings

6:25 p.m. 5. Presentation: California Wellness Trust
Tracey Rattray, MPH, MSW, Director, California Alliance for Prevention Funding

6:50 p.m. 6. Presentation: Chronic Disease Care Transition
Tina McEvoy, RN, BSN, Care Coordinator Care Transition and Palliative Care Programs, Dignity Health
Kevin Parzych, MD, Chief Medical Officer, Wilshire Health & Community Services

7:35 p.m. 7. Action Item:
7.1 Review and Approve Letter of Support for the California Wellness Trust

7:40 p.m.  8. Health Agency / Public Health Report
Penny Borenstein, MD, Health Officer/Public Health Director

8:00 p.m. 9. Health Commissioner Updates

8:15 p.m. 10. Committee Reports
a. Budget
b. Legislative
c. Community Education
d. Nominating

8:25 p.m. 11.  Prospective Future Items

8:30 p.m.  12. Adjournment

Next Meeting: April 13, 2020, at 6:00 p.m.
County Government Center, Board of Supervisors Chambers
1055 Monterey Street, San Luis Obispo, CA

All persons desiring to speak during public comment or item specific comment will be limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additional 
information regarding any items listed on today’s agenda can be obtained from the Health Commission Secretary at the Public Health 
Department located at 2191 Johnson Ave, San Luis Obispo.  All times shown in the margin adjacent to the numbered items are estimated 
and are not to be considered a time guarantee.  

The County Health Commission’s monthly agenda and minutes can be accessed at www.slopublichealth.org. 
Meetings are broadcast live by the SLO-SPAN network, Cable Channel 21. 

Para personas quienes necesiten un intérprete (en español) para hacer una presentación a la comisión, por favor llame al Teléfono 805-
781-5520.  Se hará todo lo posible para proveer este servicio.  

1 of 14

http://www.slopublichealth.org/


 

 

 COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO  
HEALTH COMMISSION 

Minutes of Meeting 
Monday, January 13, 2020 (County Board of Supervisors Chambers) 

 
Members Present: Mary Jean Sage, Jean Raymond, Tamar Sekayan, Catherine Shipp, Susan Warren, Amy Kleinman, Ginger 

Cochran, and Candace Winstead 
 
Members Absent:   Robert Campbell 
 
Staff:   Penny Borenstein, M.D. and Michael Coughlin 
 
Guests:   Christie Streeper 
  Angela Halusic, OB, Tenet Healthcare 
  Brooke Treanor, RN, BS, County of San Luis Obispo Public Health Department 
  Calandra Park, MSW, RN, Dignity Health  
  Michelle Blanc, LCSW, Tenet Healthcare 
  Patricia Vazquez Topete, Regional Program Manager, California Complete Count-Census 2020 
 

Agenda Item Discussion Action Who/When 

1. Call to Order  Mary Jean Sage (Chairperson) called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
Quorum Established 
  

Call to Order Chair Sage 

2. Public Comment: Chairperson Sage opened the floor to public comment without response. 
  

  

3. Consent Items: 3.1 Approve the meeting minutes from December 9, 2019 
3.2 Approve the Letter of Support to the County of San Luis Obispo for two 

proposed Smoking Ordinances 
3.3 Approve the Revised Letter of Support to the City of Morro Bay for a 

proposed Smoking Ordinance 
 

      The Health Commission approves consent items 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3. 
 

      Motion:   Catherine Shipp 
      2nd:        Tamar Sekayan 
      Result:    Approved – Unanimous 
 
Chairperson Sage opened the floor to public comment without response. 
 

Approved 
 

Approved 
 
 

Approved 
 

Unanimous 
 

Unanimous 
 
 

Unanimous 
 

Item 3.1

2 of 14



 

 

4. Information Item: Receive Update on Topics from Previous Meetings 
 
Chairperson Sage presented updates related to topics previously discussed 
by the Health Commission. 
  

  

5. Presentation:  
 
California Complete 
Count-Census 2020 

Mary Jean Sage (Chairperson) introduced the presenter. 
 
Patricia Vazquez Topete, Regional Program Manager, California Complete 
Count-Census 2020 presented a PowerPoint presentation outlining the goals, 
mission, challenges, and logistics of the 2020 Census in California. 
 

  

6. Presentation:  
 

Mental Health Continuum 
of Care/Post-Partum 
Depression   

Ginger Cochran (Commissioner) introduced the presenters. 
 
Christie Streeper provided a firsthand account of how she was impacted by 
Post-Partum Depression.  
 
Angela Halusic, OB, Tenet Healthcare provided a presentation outlining Post-
Partum Depression. Items discussed included the signs/symptoms, risk 
factors, screening, and treatment. 
 
Brooke Treanor, RN, BS, County of San Luis Obispo Public Health 
Department presented a PowerPoint presentation detailing the Perinatal Mood 
and Anxiety Disorder (PMAD) Project of San Luis Obispo County. 
 
Calandra Park, MSW, RN, Dignity Health provided a presentation outlining the 
Perinatal Mental Health Program at Dignity Health. 
 
Michelle Blanc, LCSW, Tenet Healthcare spoke about the Perinatal Emotional 
Support Groups and Programs available through Tenet Healthcare in San Luis 
Obispo County. 
 
Chairperson Sage opened the floor to public comment without response. 
 

    

7. Health Agency / 
Public Health Report 
 

Penny Borenstein, MD, Health Officer/Director for the County of San Luis 
Obispo Public Health Department provided the Health Commission with the 
report (summary below). 

• The Public Health Department will be issuing a press release 
announcing the first influenza related death of the season. 

  

Item 3.1

3 of 14



 

 

• The Public Health Department is aware of a Gastrointestinal (GI) 
illness associated with Yosemite National Park 

• Additionally, the Public Health Department is monitoring a new 
respiratory disease associated with Wuhan City in China. 

• The Public Health Department is being asked to submit a significant 
reduction to the budget for the 2020-2021 Program Year (PY) which 
starts July 1, 2020. 
 

8. Health Commissioner 
     Updates 
 

Commissioner Warren: Will attend the upcoming Homeless Services 
Oversight Council (HSOC) meeting. Items to be discussed include the 
Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention Program (HHAP). 
 
Commissioner Winstead: Attended the Naloxone Action Team meeting 
where they received data and updates from the Syringe Exchange.  
 
Chairperson Sage: Attended the Healthy Communities Work Group meeting 
on behalf of Commissioner Kleinman where they discussed the City of San 
Luis Obispo’s Active Transportation Plan, the California Polytechnic State 
University Master Plan as well as two projects proposed by Peoples Self Help 
Housing. Additionally, Chairperson Sage attended the Tobacco Coalition 
meeting with Commissioner Campbell. Items discussed included data and 
specifics related to two proposed Smoking Ordinances being considered by 
the County. 
 

  

9. Committee Reports a. Budget – No Report Given 
 

b. Legislative – Commissioner Kleinman outlined new healthcare related 
legislation: The Mental Healthcare for new moms passed as of January 
1, 2020 and HR3 - Elijah E. Cummings Lower Drug Costs Now Act 
passed in the House on 12/12/2020. 

 
c. Community Education – No Report Given 

 
d. Nominating – Commissioner Raymond noted that there are currently 

two vacancies on the Health Commission and that staff will be 
submitting an application for Commissioner Ginger Cochran to be 
reappointed to a Direct Provider Seat. 

 

  

Item 3.1

4 of 14



 

 

10. Prospective Future    
     Items 

This item was held over for discussion at a future meeting. 
 

  

11. Adjournment 
 

Meeting was adjourned at 8:07 p.m. Adjournment Chair Sage 

Next Meeting March 9, 2020, at 6:00 p.m.    
County Government Center, Board of Supervisors Chambers 
1055 Monterey Street, San Luis Obispo, CA  
 

  

 
I, Michael J. Coughlin, Clerk of the County of San Luis Obispo Health Commission, do hereby certify that the forgoing is a fair statement of 
the proceedings of the meeting held on Monday, January 13, 2020 by the County of San Luis Obispo Health Commission.  
 

Michael J. Coughlin, Administrative Services Officer 
Dated: February 4, 2020 

 

Item 3.1

5 of 14



County of San Luis Obispo Health Commission 
CONSENT ITEM 

March 9, 2020 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  3.2 

ITEM: Approve Health Commission member appointment for submittal to the 
San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors 
 
ACTION REQUIRED:  
It is requested that the Health Commission approve and authorize staff to 
submit the Health Commissioner application for Ginger Cochran to the San Luis 
Obispo County Board Supervisors for appointment to a Direct Provider Seat on the 
County of San Luis Obispo Health Commission. 
 
SUMMARY NARRATIVE: 
The composition of the Health Commission is dictated by article III, section 1 of 
the County of San Luis Obispo Health Commission bylaws which specify that 
the voting membership of the Health Commission shall consist of a majority of 
health care consumers who are not direct or indirect providers of health care.  Of 
the remainder of the voting membership, two shall be indirect providers and three 
shall be direct providers who are representative of the health care system in San 
Luis Obispo County. The Heath Commission currently has 3 vacancies which are 
detailed below: 
 

Member Seat Representation Current Required Vacancies 

Health Care Consumers 
(minimum 51% majority) 

5 6 1 

Indirect Providers 2 2 0 

Direct Providers 1 3 2 

Total Seats 8 11 3 
 

Efforts to achieve and retain full membership for the Heath Commission are 
ongoing and this item recommends one applicant for appointment to fill one vacant 
Direct Provider Seat. 
 
The Health Commission bylaws require a minimum of three Direct Provider 
representatives. Ginger Cochran, MS, RDN, CDE, ACSM-CEP, is recommended 
for appointment to fill one empty Direct Provider seat on the County of San Luis 
Obispo Health Commission. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff recommends the approval of the appointment of Ginger Cochran to a Direct 

Provider Seat on the County of San Luis Obispo Health Commission. Upon 

approval, staff will submit a recommendation for appointment by the Board of 

Supervisors at an upcoming meeting. 
 

Item 3.2

6 of 14



7 of 14



8 of 14



9 of 14



10 of 14



11 of 14



12 of 14



 

 

  COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO  

  HEALTH COMMISSION 

 

 

 

 

County of San Luis Obispo Health Commission | c/o Public Health Department 

2191 Johnson Avenue  |  San Luis Obispo, CA 93401  |  (P) 805-781-5500  |  (F) 805-781-1048 

 

 

Commission Members: 

Mary Jean Sage, Chair 

Jean Raymond, Vice Chair 

Robert Campbell 

Tamar Sekayan 

Susan Warren 

Candace Winstead 

Amy Kleinman 

Ginger Cochran  

 
 
 

March 10, 2020 
 
The Honorable Joaquin Arambula, MD   The Honorable Richard Pan, MD 
Chari, Assembly budget Subcommittee #1  Chair, Senate Budget subcommittee #3 on 
on Health and Human Services    Health and Human Services 
State Capitol Building, Room 6026   State Capitol Building, Room 5019 
Sacramento, CA 95814     Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Re:  Support for a California Wellness Fund Budget Request 
 
Dear Doctor Arambula and Doctor Pan, 
 
The San Luis Obispo County Health Commission supports the California Wellness Fund budget proposal.  
The Health Commission consists of 11 volunteer appointees who are residents of San Luis Obispo 
County, of which six are consumer representatives, three are direct providers (physicians, nurses and 
dentists), and two are indirect providers (medical office managers and hospital administrators).  The 
Commission advises the County Board of Supervisors and the Public Health Department on health 
matters in the county.  This includes the critical importance of health prevention and wellness.  Wellness 
is more than the absence of illness; it means health of body, mind, and spirit.  It also means an 
abundance of justice, equity and voice. 
 
The budget proposal is a one-time allocation of general funds in order to begin a roll-out of a statewide 
initiative to promote health equity and prevent key risk factors for leading causes of illness and 
premature death.  This investment of $10 per capita represents less than 1/1000th of what California 
spends on health care.  Investing in healthier communities can keep people from needing health care in 
the first place, keeping health care costs down while improving quality of life.  
 
These funds are needed to implement strategies we know work.  Local health departments and 
community-based organizations know how to significantly reduce risks for the leading causes of illness, 
injury, and premature death including heart disease, diabetes, and dementia.  These diseases have 
common risk factors beginning in early childhood and continuing on to older adults.  Unfortunately, we 
do not have adequate resources to scale and sustain effective programs to address these risk factors.  
Limited state, federal, and private funding for disease prevention is sporadic, siloed, and declining. 
 
The California Wellness Fund will provide resources to local health departments and community 
organizations, including clinics and tribes, initially in a subset of jurisdictions in Northern, Central, and 
Southern California, using indices of health inequities to focus resources on the most vulnerable 

Item 7.1

13 of 14



residents and communities.  Recipients will work together and use local needs assessments to 
implement evidence-based and community-guided strategies to across the lifespan to improve access to 
healthy food and safe drinking water, increase opportunities to be physically active, and promote safer 
and healthier neighborhoods.  Rigorous evaluation and accountability will measure changes in key risks 
for preventable illness and injury in communities with the greatest health inequities.   

In 2018 community, health and business leaders of San Luis Obispo came together to develop a five-year 
Community Health Improvement Plan after doing an extensive Community Assessment in our county.   
We would look forward to working with the California Wellness Fund to implement some of our 
strategies for success of our Community Health Improvement Plan and ensure all San Luis Obispo 
County residents have the opportunity to live a healthy life.   

A California Wellness Fund ultimately will benefit all Californians.  This budget proposal will reach only a 
part of the state’s population, but it will lay the groundwork for a statewide effort to scale-up the fight 
against preventable chronic disease, promote health equity, and improve California for all.  Our state’s 
vision for the future of health must include not only covering all Californians in times of illness, but also 
assuring critical investments to keep people from getting sick in the first place.  We strongly urge you to 
support the California Wellness Fund. 

Sincerely, 

Mary Jean Sage, Chair 

Cc  Kat DeBurgh, Executive Director,  Health Officers Association of California  

Item 7.1

14 of 14

mailto:deburgh@calhealthofficers.org

	2020-03-09-Health-Commission-Agenda
	Item 3.1 2020-01-13-Health-Commission-Minutes
	Item 3.2 HC Member
	Item 3.2a Doc - Feb 26 2020 - 1-46 PM_Redacted
	Item 7.1 Letter of Support for the California Wellness Trust



